
 
 

NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011 

Board Meeting REVISED Agenda 
*to include additional items in red 

March 17, 2021, 6:30 PM 
 

*** VIRTUAL MEETING *** 
 

Public Notice: Pursuant to Governor Inslee’s Stay Home, Stay Healthy Proclamation 20-25 and in 
effort to curtail the spread of the COVID-19 virus, this Board Meeting will be conducted remotely. 
Members of the public are encouraged to attend and participate in the meeting remotely, as 
described in more detail below. 
 
To attend the Board Meeting: 
(1) Online: Click the link https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89871911185 (or copy the URL and paste 
into a web browser) 
(2) By Telephone: Call in to the meeting by dialing +1 253-215-8782 ID: 898 7191 1185 
 
To provide Public Comment: 
Submit your written Public Comment before 3:00PM (day of meeting), to the Clerk of the Board 
at robin.schaefer@bothellwa.gov. 

 
1. Call to Order – 6:30 PM 

 
2. Minute Order # MO-21-03, Appointing a Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board 
 
3. Public Comment – Read Public Comments submitted.  Allow up to 3 minutes/ comment. 

 
4. Consent Agenda         (5 min) 

A. Minutes from February 17, 2021 
B. *Vouchers for invoices received from December 10, 2020 to March 12, 2021 in the 

amount of $35,439.50 
 

5. Reports          (40 min) 
A. Capital Repairs Update 
B. *NPRSA Insurance Update 
C. Northshore Senior Center Brief, Brooke Knight NSSC 

 
6. Discussion Items         (50 min) 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89871911185
mailto:robin.schaefer@bothellwa.gov


 
 

NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011 

A. Consideration of Agreements # A-21-03 and # A-21-04; an Interlocal Agreement with 
City of Everett for Cooperative Purchasing and a Professional Services Agreement 
with The Gordian Group, Inc. for Job-Order Contracting Services 

B. Consideration of Minute Order # MO-21-04, Facility Upgrade Request for a Dance 
Studio 
 

7. Future Meetings 
 

8. Adjourn 
 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA: The preceding is a preliminary agenda of the Northshore Park and Recreation 
Service Area Board. Other items may be added and action taken on matters which do not appear above. 
For additional information, please contact: Robin Schaefer at robin.schaefer@bothellwa.gov. 
 

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS: The Northshore Parks and Recreation Service Area 
 strives to provide accessible meetings for people with disabilities. If special accommodations are required, 

 please contact Kellye Mazzoli at (425) 471-8464. at least three days prior to the meeting. 

 

mailto:robin.schaefer@bothellwa.gov


NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Consent Item # 4B 

TO: Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Program Manager 

DATE: March 17, 2021 

SUBJECT: Vouchers for invoices received from December 10, 2020 – March 12, 2021 in 
the amount of $35,439.50 

 ITEM 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to approve vouchers for expenses invoiced between 
December 10, 2020 – March 12, 2021 in the amount of $35,439.50. 

FISCAL 
IMPACTS: 

These items are budgeted in the 2021 adopted budget. 

ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. Voucher Packet #1 
Att-2. Voucher Packet #2 

RECOMMENDED 
ACTION: 

Move to approve vouchers for expenses invoiced between December 10, 2020 – 
March 12, 2021 in the amount of $35,439.50. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 



Special District Voucher Approval Document KC v2.0

Scheduled Payment Date: 03/19/2021 District Name: Northshore Parks and Recreation
Total Amount: $35,383.50 File Name: AP_NOSHRPRK_APSUPINV_20210312085907.csv
Control Total: 1 Fund #: 251010010

Payment Method: WARRANT

CONTACT INFORMATION

Preparer's Name: _________________________________________________________ Email Address: carly.joerger@bothellwa.gov

PAYMENT CERTIFICATION RCW  (42.24.080)

Authorized District Signature(s) for Payment of Claims (Auditing Officer(s) or Board Member(s)) :

_______________________________________________________     ______________________ _______________________________________________________     _____________________
                             Authorized District Signature Date    Authorized District Signature-------------------------------------------Date

_______________________________________________________     ______________________ _______________________________________________________     _____________________
                             Authorized District Signature Date    Authorized District Signature-------------------------------------------Date

_______________________________________________________     ______________________ _______________________________________________________     _____________________
                             Authorized District Signature Date    Authorized District Signature-------------------------------------------Date

 SUBMIT SIGNED DOCUMENT TO:  KING COUNTY FINANCE USE ONLY:
King County Accounts Payable
Attn:  Special Districts
401 5th Avenue, Room 323
Seattle, WA  98104

 
Batch Processed By:                   ___________________
 
Date Processed:                          ___________________

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury, that the materials have been furnished, the services rendered, the labor performed as described, or that any advance payment is due and payable 
pursuant to a contract or is available as an option for full or partial fulfillment of a contractual obligation, and that the claim(s) is(are) just, due and unpaid obligation against the above-named governmental unit, 
that I am authorized to authenticate and certify to said claim(s).

Email: SpecialDist.AP@kingcounty.gov
Fax: (206) 263-3767

Printed On Friday, March 12, 2021 at 09:00:07 AM Page 1 of 2



Special District Voucher Approval Document KC v2.0

District Name: Northshore Parks and Recreation File Name: AP_NOSHRPRK_APSUPINV_20210312085907.csv

Payee (Vendor Name) Vendor No. Vendor Site Invoice No. Invoice Date Inv. Amount Description

JOHNSON CONTROLS INC. 00044174712 02/17/2021 $35,383.50 HVAC BAS UPGRADE 2/1/21-2/28/21

Printed On Friday, March 12, 2021 at 09:00:07 AM Page 2 of 2







NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011 

Board Meeting Agenda 
March 17, 2021, 6:30 PM 

*** VIRTUAL MEETING *** 

Public Notice: Pursuant to Governor Inslee’s Stay Home, Stay Healthy Proclamation 20-25 and in 
effort to curtail the spread of the COVID-19 virus, this Board Meeting will be conducted remotely. 
Members of the public are encouraged to attend and participate in the meeting remotely, as 
described in more detail below. 

To attend the Board Meeting: 
(1) Online: Click the link https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89871911185 (or copy the URL and paste
into a web browser)
(2) By Telephone: Call in to the meeting by dialing +1 253-215-8782 ID: 898 7191 1185

To provide Public Comment: 
Submit your written Public Comment before 3:00PM (day of meeting), to the Clerk of the Board 
at robin.schaefer@bothellwa.gov. 

1. Call to Order – 6:30 PM

2. Minute Order # MO-21-03, Appointing a Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board

3. Public Comment – Read Public Comments submitted.  Allow up to 3 minutes/ comment.

4. Consent Agenda (5 min) 
A. Minutes from February 17, 2021
B. Vouchers for invoices received from December 10, 2020 to March 5, 2021 in the

amount of $56.00

5. Reports (40 min) 
A. Capital Repairs Update
B. Northshore Senior Center Brief, Brooke Knight NSSC

6. Discussion Items (50 min) 
A. Consideration of Agreements # A-21-03 and # A-21-04; an Interlocal Agreement with

City of Everett for Cooperative Purchasing and a Professional Services Agreement
with The Gordian Group, Inc. for Job-Order Contracting Services

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89871911185
mailto:robin.schaefer@bothellwa.gov


 
 

NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011 

B. Consideration of Minute Order # MO-21-04, Facility Upgrade Request for a Dance 
Studio 
 

7. Future Meetings 
 

8. Adjourn 
 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA: The preceding is a preliminary agenda of the Northshore Park and Recreation 
Service Area Board. Other items may be added and action taken on matters which do not appear above. 
For additional information, please contact: Robin Schaefer at robin.schaefer@bothellwa.gov. 
 

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS: The Northshore Parks and Recreation Service Area 
 strives to provide accessible meetings for people with disabilities. If special accommodations are required, 

 please contact Kellye Mazzoli at (425) 471-8464. at least three days prior to the meeting. 

 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 2 of 58

mailto:robin.schaefer@bothellwa.gov


NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 2 

 
       

 
TO: 

 
Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Program Manager (Presenter) 
 

DATE: 
 

March 17, 2021 

SUBJECT: 
 

Consideration of Minute Order # MO-21-03, Appointing a Chair and Vice-Chair 
of the Board 

 
 

   POLICY 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to select a Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board from among 
its Members. If approved, the two-year term for the Chair and Vice-Chair will 
begin April 1, 2021. 

  
HISTORY: DATE ACTION 

OCTOBER 21, 2020 NPRSA Board approved revised Board Bylaws 
 
On October 21, 2020 the Board revised its Bylaws and made several updates to 
better reflect the current Board’s structure and operations. Included in these 
updates was a new section clarifying the number and term of Officer positions. 

  
DISCUSSION: As outlined in the Board Bylaws, the Board shall have, at a minimum, a Chair and 

Vice-Chair who shall be elected by the Board by a majority vote. The Chair and 
Vice-Chair shall serve a two-year term, with no limit on the number of terms they 
can serve. Since Member Agencies confirm their appointments to Boards and 
Commissions in the first quarter of each year, the NPRSA Board selects the Chair 
and Vice-Chair to begin their terms starting in April. Staff recommend the Board 
follow the attached procedure (Att-1) to discuss, nominate, and appoint the 
Chair and Vice-Chair.  

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item has no direct fiscal impact to the NPRSA. 

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1      NPRSA Chair and Vice-Chair Appointment Procedure 

  
RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 
Move to approve # MO-21-03, Appointing the following Board Members for two 
years: Board Member _________________ as Chair and Board Member 
_________________ as Vice-Chair. 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 3 of 58



 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 4 of 58



NPRSA Chair and Vice-Chair Appointment Procedure 

Chair: At this time, I will now ask the Board Clerk to conduct the Appointment of the next Board 
Chair and Vice-Chair. 

Clerk: I will now conduct the Appointment of the Chair and Vice-Chair to a two-year term. The 
nomination procedures are as follows: 

• I will call for nominations for the Chair.
• Each member of the Board is permitted to nominate one person and nominations do

not require a second.
• A nominee who wishes to decline will do so at this time.
• Once all nominations have been made, I will close the nominations.
• If there is only one nominee, the appointment will be conducted by voice vote.
• If there is more than one nominee, the Board will first discuss then the appointment will

be conducted by voice vote. Ties will be determined by coin-toss.
• Once the Chair is appointed, the appointment of the Vice-Chair will follow these same

procedures.

Att-1

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 5 of 58



 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 6 of 58



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Consent Item # 4A 

 
       

 
TO: 

 
Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director 
Robin Schaefer, NPRSA Board Clerk (Presenter) 
 

DATE: 
 

March 17, 2021 

SUBJECT: 
 

Minutes from February 17, 2021 

 
 

   ITEM  
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to approve minutes from NPRSA Board meetings held 
on February 17, 2021. 

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item does not have any direct fiscal impact.  

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. Minutes from February 17, 2021 

  
RECOMMENDED  

ACTION: 
Move to approve the NPRSA Board Minutes from February 17, 2021.  

 
  

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 7 of 58



(This page intentionally left blank) 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 8 of 58



NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011
1 

February 17, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 

*** VIRTUAL MEETING *** 

Public Notice: Pursuant to Governor Inslee’s Stay Home, Stay Healthy Proclamation 20-25 and 
in effort to curtail the spread of the COVID-19 virus, this Board Meeting will be conducted 
remotely. Members of the public are encouraged to attend and participate in the meeting 
remotely, as described in more detail below. 

To attend the Board Meeting: 
(1) Online: Click the link https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89299675575 (or copy the URL and paste
into a web browser)
(2) By Telephone: Call in to the meeting by dialing +1 253-215-8782 ID: 892 9967 5575

To provide Public Comment: 
Submit your written Public Comment before 3:00PM (day of meeting), email: 
robin.schaefer@bothellwa.gov 

1. Call to Order

Vice-Chair Tom Agnew called the virtual meeting to order at 6:32 PM.

Meeting Attendees 

Present 
NPRSA Vice-Chair Tom Agnew 

 NPRSA Board Members Joe Marshall, Jared Mead, Kathy Lambert, Rod Dembowski, and 
Rosemary McAuliffe (Bothell alternate for James McNeal) 

Kellye Mazzoli, NPRSA Executive Director, City of Bothell 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator, City of Bothell 
Robin Schaefer, Board Clerk, City of Bothell 
Barbara Glass, Records Specialist, City of Bothell 
Brooke Knight, Northshore Senior Center, Executive Director 
Zorna Kimball, Northshore Senior Center, Operations 
John Dolin, Northshore Senior Center Board, President 
Suzanne Greathouse, Northshore Senior Center Board, Vice President 
Corey Lowell, Northshore Senior Center Board, Operations 

Absent 
NPRSA Chair James McNeal 
NPRSA Board Member for Woodinville (TBD) 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 9 of 58

Att-1



 
 

NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011
  2 

2. Public Comment  

Board Clerk Robin Schaefer reported she did not receive any general public comment by the 
deadline for the meeting. She invited those in attendance to raise their hands if they wished 
to speak. There were no requests. 

 

3. Consent Agenda  
 

A. Minutes from December 16, 2020  
 

Rod Dembowski moved approval of the Consent Agenda. Joe Marshall second. The motion 
passed 6-0 with Woodinville absent. 

 

4. Reports  

A. Records Management Program Update 
 

  Records Specialist Barbara Glass presented an update on the new structure and 
implementation of the NPRSA’s record management system. Board Members received the 
report and asked questions. No action was taken. 

B. Capital Repairs Update (HVAC System & Water Heaters) 

Carly Joerger presented the update and entertained Board comments and questions. No 
action was taken.  

C. 2020 Financial Report 

Carly Joerger presented the update and entertained Board comments and questions. No 
action was taken.  

D. Northshore Senior Center Brief 
 

Brooke Knight updated the Board on the Center’s current programs, and entertained 
comments and questions. No action was taken. 
The Board expressed their gratitude and thanks to Brooke for all she has done for the 
community during the COVID crisis.  
 

5. Discussion Items  
 

A. Consideration of Minute Order # MO-21-01, receiving the Northshore Senior 
Center’s 2021 Budget Presentation   

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 10 of 58



 
 

NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011
  3 

 
 

Brooke Knight presented the Senior Center’s 2021 Budget, and entertained Board 
comments and questions.  

Rod Dembowski moved approval of # MO-22-001 as presented. Kathy Lambert second. The 
motion passed 6-0 with Woodinville absent. 

 

B. Consideration of Resolution # R 20-06-01, Amending the NPRSA Budget to 
Increase Expenditures for Board Insurance Coverage 
 

Carly Joerger presented the item and entertained Board comments and questions.  

Kathy Lambert moved approval of Resolution # R 20-06-01 as presented. Rosemary McAuliffe 
second. The motion passed 6-0 with Woodinville absent. 

 
C. Consideration of Resolution # R 21-01, Appointing an Agent to Receive Claims for 

Damages 
 

Carly Joerger presented the item and entertained comments and questions.  

Joe Marshall moved approval of Resolution # R 21-01 as presented. Kathy Lambert second. 
The motion passed 6-0 with Woodinville absent. 

 

D. Consideration of Minute Order # MO 21-02, Facility Upgrade Request – Sports 
Court Feasibility Study 
 

Carly Joerger presented the item and together with Brooke Knight entertained 
comments and questions.  

Rosemary McAuliffe moved approval of Minute Order # MO 21-02 as presented. Kathy 
Lambert second. The motion passed 6-0 with Woodinville absent. 

 

6. Future Meetings 

Upcoming meetings will be March 17, 2021 and April 21, 2021 

 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 11 of 58



 
 

NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011
  4 

 

 

7. Adjourn 

Prior to adjournment and for the good of the order: Kathy Lambert reported on potential 
funding coming through the New Cares Act & American Rescue Plan. If passed, every city and 
school district will receive a direct allocation. FEMA will also be covering all vaccine costs, 
which may free up some King County monies. 

 
Vice-Chair Tom Agnew adjourned the meeting at 8:06 PM. 

 
 
Submitted for approval on March 17, 2021 
Robin Schaefer 
Board Clerk 

 

 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 12 of 58



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Consent Item # 4B 

 
       

 
TO: 

 
Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Program Manager 
 

DATE: 
 

March 17, 2021 

SUBJECT: 
 

Vouchers for invoices received from December 10, 2020 – March 5, 2021 in the 
amount of $56.00 

 
 

   ITEM  
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to approve vouchers for expenses invoiced between 
December 10, 2020 – March 5, 2021 in the amount of $56.00. 

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
These items are budgeted in the 2021 adopted budget.  

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. Voucher Packet 

  
RECOMMENDED  

ACTION: 
Move to approve vouchers for expenses invoiced between December 10, 2020 – 
March 5, 2021 in the amount of $56.00. 

 
  

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 13 of 58



 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 14 of 58



Special District Voucher Approval Document KC v2.0

Scheduled Payment Date: 03/19/2021 District Name: Northshore Parks and Recreation
Total Amount: $56.00 File Name: AP_NOSHRPRK_APSUPINV_20210305160945.csv
Control Total: 1 Fund #: 251010010

Payment Method: WARRANT

CONTACT INFORMATION

Preparer's Name: _________________________________________________________ Email Address: carly.joerger@bothellwa.gov

PAYMENT CERTIFICATION RCW  (42.24.080)

Authorized District Signature(s) for Payment of Claims (Auditing Officer(s) or Board Member(s)) :

_______________________________________________________     ______________________ _______________________________________________________     _____________________
Authorized District Signature Date    Authorized District Signature-------------------------------------------Date

_______________________________________________________     ______________________ _______________________________________________________     _____________________
Authorized District Signature Date    Authorized District Signature-------------------------------------------Date

_______________________________________________________     ______________________ _______________________________________________________     _____________________
Authorized District Signature Date    Authorized District Signature-------------------------------------------Date

 SUBMIT SIGNED DOCUMENT TO:  KING COUNTY FINANCE USE ONLY:
King County Accounts Payable
Attn:  Special Districts
401 5th Avenue, Room 323
Seattle, WA  98104

Batch Processed By: ___________________

Date Processed: ___________________

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury, that the materials have been furnished, the services rendered, the labor performed as described, or that any advance payment is due and payable 
pursuant to a contract or is available as an option for full or partial fulfillment of a contractual obligation, and that the claim(s) is(are) just, due and unpaid obligation against the above-named governmental unit, 
that I am authorized to authenticate and certify to said claim(s).

Email: SpecialDist.AP@kingcounty.gov
Fax: (206) 263-3767

Printed On Friday, March 5, 2021 at 04:11:52 PM Page 1 of 2
NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 15 of 58

Att-1



Special District Voucher Approval Document KC v2.0

District Name: Northshore Parks and Recreation File Name: AP_NOSHRPRK_APSUPINV_20210305160945.csv

Payee (Vendor Name) Vendor No. Vendor Site Invoice No. Invoice Date Inv. Amount Description

SOUND PUBLISHING, INC. UNIT ATTN: A/R EDH856514 05/11/2019 $56.00

Printed On Friday, March 5, 2021 at 04:11:52 PM Page 2 of 2
NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 16 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 17 of 58



 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 18 of 58



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 6A 

 
       

 
TO: 

 
Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Program Manager (Presenter) 
 

DATE: 
 

March 17, 2021 

SUBJECT: 
 

Consideration of Agreements # A-21-03 and # A-21-04; an Interlocal Agreement 
with City of Everett for Cooperative Purchasing and a Professional Services 
Agreement with The Gordian Group, Inc. for Job-Order Contracting Services 

 
 

   POLICY 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to consider entering into two separate, but related 
agreements that would create the NPRSA’s job order contract program: an 
Interlocal Agreement with the City of Everett for Cooperative Purchasing and a 
Professional Services Agreement with The Gordian Group, Inc. for job-order 
contract services and use of the unit-price book.  
 
If approved, the NPRSA may “piggyback” on the public procurement process 
used by the City of Everett to establish their job-order contract program. If 
denied, staff will utilize the NPRSA’s procurement processes to select 
contractors.   

  
HISTORY: DATE ACTION 

AUGUST 19, 2020 NPRSA Board approves Purchasing Policy 

NOVEMBER 18, 2020 
NPRSA Board amends Purchasing Policy allowing the 
Executive Director to authorize use of alternative 
procurement and contracting methods 

DECEMBER 16, 2020 NPRSA Board authorized use of Job-Order 
Contracting 

 
On August 19, 2020 the NPRSA Board adopted its first Purchasing Policy, defining 
the NPRSA’s procedures for procuring goods and services. On November 18, 
2020 the Board amended the Purchasing Policy to include an additional provision 
allowing the Executive Director to authorize the use of alternative procurement 
and contracting methods that are allowed in state law but may not be specifically 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 19 of 58



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 6A 

 
listed in the Purchasing Policy. On December 16, 2020 the Board determined job-
order contracting, an alternative public works procurement method, would 
provide benefit to the public and directed staff to establish a job-order contract 
program for the NPRSA. 

  
DISCUSSION: This agenda bill begins with a summary of the job-order contract method, 

reviews the benefits of cooperative purchasing, then describes the two 
agreements attached to this item for the Board’s consideration.  
 
Summary: Job-order Contracting Method 
Job-order contracting is an alternative public works procurement and 
contracting method that staff and the Board have determined to be a fit for the 
nature of the facility repairs and renovations listed in the NPRSA’s Capital Repairs 
Plan. This method allows the NPRSA to contract with one prime contractor for 
the majority, if not all, of the projects the NPRSA would like to complete. Rather 
than soliciting bids for each individual project, the NPRSA will issue work orders 
to the contractor who then sub-contracts the work. To develop the work orders, 
the NPRSA will work with a consultant who specializes in job-order contracting 
and provides expertise on using the unit-price book to craft work orders that 
match project scope and budget.    
 
This procurement method is authorized in state law because of the specific 
process by which the prime contractor is selected. The contractor submits a 
percentage mark-up or mark-down based on the information provided in the 
unit-price book. This approach allows competitive bidding, while offering some 
price guarantee and project flexibility to the NRPSA. Job-order contracting will 
save the NPRSA time in the long-run, but establishing the program up front can 
take a significant amount of time. To counter this, staff recommend the Board 
utilize cooperative purchasing to establish a job-order contract program.  
 
Summary: Interlocal Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 
Cooperative purchasing, or piggybacking, allows public agencies to utilize 
contracts another agency has in place, so long as that agency followed public 
procurement laws and allows cooperative purchasing. This tool is commonly 
used to avoid duplicating lengthy and complicated procurement processes. After 
consulting with neighboring agencies that utilize the job-order contract method, 
the City of Everett agreed to allow the NPRSA to “piggyback” off of their job-
order contract. In this case, City of Everett used their public procurement 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 20 of 58



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 6A 

 
procedures to 1) contract with the Gordian Group as the consultant who creates 
the job-order contract program and customizes the unit-price book and 2) 
contract with FORMA Construction as the prime contractor. The City of Everett 
has had positive interactions with both contractors and has agreed to share up 
to $1 million per year of job-order contract capacity with the NPRSA in 2021, with 
the option for annual extensions of up to three years.  
 
Summary: Agreements for Board Consideration 
In order for the NPRSA to work with both FORMA Construction and the Gordian 
Group, the NPRSA would need to enter into two separate, but related 
agreements presented in this agenda bill. The first is an interlocal agreement 
with the City of Everett for cooperative purchasing (Att-1). This agreement 
authorizes the NPRSA to piggyback on the City of Everett’s job-order contract, 
which includes both its procurement of the Gordian Group and FORMA 
Construction. The interlocal agreement also grants the NPRSA use of up to $1 
million in job-order contract capacity with FORMA Construction for 2021.  
 
The second agreement for the Board’s consideration is a professional services 
agreement between the NPRSA and the Gordian Group (Att-2). Since the NPRSA 
is not establishing its own job-order contract program the NPRSA does not 
require the full scope of services that the Gordian Group provides to the City of 
Everett. Rather, this agreement establishes a scaled down version of the original 
scope of work and sets forth a fee structure where the NPRSA will pay the 
Gordian Group five percent of each work order that the NPRSA issues. Since the 
job-order contract capacity is capped at $1 million per year for three years, the 
maximum amount the NPRSA would pay the Gordian Group is, therefore, no 
more than $150,000 over a three-year period.   

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item is budgeted for in the 2021 budget under capital outlay. The interlocal 
agreement is capped at $1,000,000 per year, and the fee for the Gordian Group’s 
services is five percent of the total amount of each work order issued.  

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1       Agreement # A-21-03, Interlocal Agreement with City of Everett for    

Cooperative Purchasing 
Att-2    Agreement # A-21-04, with the Gordian Group for Professional 
Services 

  

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 21 of 58



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 6A 

 
RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 
Move to approve Agreements # A-21-03 and # A-21-04; Interlocal Agreement 
with City of Everett for Cooperative Purchasing and a Professional Services 
Agreement with The Gordian Group, Inc. for Job-Order Contracting Services 

 
 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 22 of 58



Page 1 of 5 

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF EVERETT, WASHINGTON 

AND 

NORTHSHORE PARKS AND RECREATION SERVICE AREA 

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the City of Everett, hereinafter referred to as 
"City", and the Northshore Parks and Recreation Service Area, hereafter referred to as “Agency,” each 
party having been duly organized and now existing under the laws of the State of Washington. 

WHEREAS, the City has entered into a job order contract as authorized by Chapter 39.10 RCW with 
Forma Construction ("Contractor") dated on or about November 20, 2018, as amended by amendments 
1-4 (the "JOC Contract”); and

WHEREAS, the JOC Contract was procured by a Request for Proposals, “Job Order Contracting – General 
Construction Services RFP #2018-022" dated July 12, 2018, and this Request for Proposals stated that 
the JOC Contract may be used by other agencies; and 

WHEREAS, Amendment No. 4 to the JOC Contract provides an opportunity for other public agencies to 
use the terms and conditions of the JOC Contract (“JOC Amendment No. 4”); and  

WHEREAS, the Agency wishes to utilize, in part, the terms and conditions of the JOC Contract to perform 
various Agency job order projects on Agency facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into this Agreement with Agency to allow the Agency to utilize the 
terms and conditions of the JOC Contract; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have determined that they have the authority to enter into this 
Agreement in accordance with Chapter RCW 39.34 RCW, Interlocal Cooperation Act, and their 
respective policies and procedures, as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and foregoing recitals, the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. STATEMENT OF WORK

Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Agency may issue job orders to Contractor for job
order construction services.  The job order construction services for such Agency job orders will be
provided by Contractor directly to the Agency on the same terms and conditions as the JOC
Contract, except that for such Agency job order construction services:

(a) the City will not be a party to the job order between Agency and Contractor for such
services;

(b) the obligations owed by Contractor to the City under the terms and conditions of JOC
Contract will instead be owed by Contractor to the Agency, including but not limited to
obligations to provide performance and payment bonds to Agency for work performed for

Att-1

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 23 of 58

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fnprsawa.org%2F&data=04%7C01%7CTBauccio%40everettwa.gov%7Cdd664edbe519478e897e08d8d91af968%7C7ac422a9fc2d41b89bff064aaf2eb0c4%7C1%7C0%7C637498057177032516%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=gCnpJl12zERYHpK1sYmC7QDPr5Jw8IwXKkP7QTDLSsA%3D&reserved=0


Page 2 of 5 

the Agency and to provide insurance endorsements that name the Agency as additional 
insured; and  

(c) the obligations owed by the City to Contractor under the terms and conditions of JOC 
Contract will instead be owed by the Agency to Contractor, including but not limited to 
obligations to pay for construction services rendered by Contractor.   

A copy of the JOC Contract, including its amendments 1-4, is attached hereto as Attachment "A".  In 
the event that the City and Contractor further amend the JOC Contract, the terms and conditions of 
of such amendment will apply from its effective date to job order construction services provided to 
Agency. 

All job orders issued by Agency to Contractor shall state substantially the following: “All work 
described herein is provided to the Agency by Contractor in connection with Amendment No. 4 to 
the Job Order Contract between Forma Construction and the City of Everett.  The City of Everett is 
not a party to, nor responsible for, performance of or payment for the work described in this job 
order."  However, the omission of such provision from a job order shall not change any persons’ 
rights or obligations under this Agreement or JOC Amendment No. 4. 

Contractor will directly invoice the Agency for any and all such construction services provided. Prior 
to the issuance of any job orders by Agency, the Agency and Contractor will sign a letter agreement 
provided by the City, which will confirm the agreement for provision of job order construction 
services to the Agency. 

 
2. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The Agency and City agree that any work performed for the Agency by Contractor and its respective 
subcontractors under this Agreement shall be conducted in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the JOC Contract as set forth in this Agreement.   

 
3. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 

The period of performance of this Agreement shall commence when this Agreement is signed by 
both parties and be completed no later than November 20, 2021, unless changed by Amendment to 
this Agreement. 

 
4. COMPENSATION; PAYMENT PROCEDURE 

The total value of all job orders issued by the Agency to Contractor shall not exceed $1,000,000.  
Contractor shall directly invoice the Agency and the Agency shall directly pay Contractor pursuant to 
the payment and compensation terms identified within the JOC Contract, respectively. 

 
5. RECORDS MAINTENANCE 

City, Agency, Contractor and their contractors, subcontractors, sub-consultants, representatives and 
employees shall each maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence for six (6) years after 
the expiration of this Agreement (unless a longer period of time is specified in applicable records 
retention policies in which case such policies shall prevail). These records shall be subject to 
inspection, review, or audit by personnel of both parties' and other personnel duly authorized by 
either party, or the Washington State Auditor. 

 
6. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 
 

(a) Theresa Bauccio-Teschlog will be the City Representative for all communications regarding this 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 24 of 58



Page 3 of 5 

Agreement. The City Representative shall be responsible for monitoring the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
(b) Carly Joerger will be the Agency Representative for all communications regarding this 
Agreement.  The Agency Representative shall be responsible for monitoring the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
(c) Rob Wettleson shall serve as the Contractor Representative for all communications regarding the 
job order construction services as addressed herein. 

 
7. NO CITY RESPONSIBILITY 

The Agency specifically agrees that the City shall have no liability or responsibility whatsoever for 
the Agency’s use of the terms and conditions of the JOC Contract, the performance of Contractor, or 
any other matter relating to Agency job orders.  The Agency, and not the City, shall have complete 
responsibility for paying Contractor for services related to Agency job orders.  The City makes no 
representations or warranties of any kind, including without limitation no representations or 
warranties regarding contractors, performance, Contractor’s insurance and bonds, or the 
enforcibility of the terms and conditions of the JOC Contract against the Contractor.  The Agency 
uses Contractor and uses the terms and conditions of the JOC Contract all solely at Agency’s own 
risk.   
 

8. INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE 
The Agency releases and shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and its officers, 
employees and agents (each such person, an “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, 
actions, damages, liability, costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, arising out of or relating to 
(a) any Agency job order to Contractor, (b) the Agency’s use of the terms and conditions of the JOC 
Contract and (c) any work done by Contractor or its subcontractors for the Agency.  The foregoing 
indemnity, defense, and hold harmless obligation includes without limitation indemnity, defense, 
and hold harmless for each Indemnitee from and against any request, claim or demand for payment 
by Contractor or Contractor’s subcontractors or Contractor’s suppliers or Contractor’s employees in 
connection with Agency job orders.  This Section is specifically and expressly intended to constitute 
a waiver of the Agency's immunity under Washington's Industrial Insurance Act, RCW Title 51, to the 
full extent necessary to provide each Indemnitee with a full and complete indemnity from claims 
made by the Agency and its employees, to maximum extent allowed by law.  AGENCY AND CITY 
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE INDEMNIFICATION PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION WERE SPECIFICALLY 
NEGOTIATED AND AGREED UPON BY THEM. 
 

9. TERMINATION 
Either party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notification.  If this 
Agreement is so terminated, the terminating party shall be liable only for performance in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement for performance rendered prior to the effective date 
of termination. 

 
10. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN/AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties.  No other 
understanding, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed 
to exist or to bind any parties hereto. 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 25 of 58



Page 4 of 5 

 
City and Agency may mutually amend this Agreement.  Such amendments shall not be binding 
unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind the parties or their respective 
delegates. 
 

11. VENUE 
The parties shall bring any litigation arising out of or relating to this Agreement only before the 
Snohomish County Superior Court. 

 
12. COUNTERPARTS 

Original signatures transmitted and received via facsimile or other electronic transmission of a 
scanned document, (e.g., PDF or similar format) are true and valid signatures for all purposes 
hereunder and shall bind the parties to the same extent as that of an original signature.  Any such 
facsimile or electronic mail transmission shall constitute the final agreement of the parties and 
conclusive proof of such agreement This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 
each of which shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original and all of which shall constitute the 
same instrument. 

 

CITY OF EVERETT 

WASHINGTON 

 

 

 

By: ____________________________ 

Cassie Franklin, Mayor 

 

______________________________ 

Date 

Northshore Parks and Recreation Service Area  
 

 

Signature: ____________________________ 

Typed/Printed Name: ___________________ 

Title: ________________ 

 

___________________________________ 

Date 

 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 26 of 58



Page 5 of 5 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Sharon Fuller, City Clerk 

Date:  ______________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

David C. Hall, City Attorney 

Date: _______________ 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

________________________________________ 

Paul Byrne, NPRSA Attorney 

Date: _______________ 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 27 of 58



 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 28 of 58



Page 1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND LICENSE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made this _________ day of    , 2021 by and between Northshore Parks 
and Recreation Service Area, whose address is 10201 E Riverside Dr, Bothell, WA 98011 ("Owner"), and The 
Gordian Group, Inc., whose address is 30 Patewood Drive, Suite 350, Greenville, South Carolina 29615 
("Gordian"). 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, as amended, and codified in Chapter 39.34 of the Revised Code 
of Washington provided for interlocal cooperation between governmental agencies;  

WHEREAS, Owner has entered into Interlocal Agreement No. # A-21-03 with the City of Everett to enable 
the access and use Job Order Contracts (“JOC Contracts”) for the purpose of procuring various construction 
services;   

WHEREAS, Gordian’s proprietary JOC system and services are required for the access and use of the JOC 
Contracts in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein; 

WHEREAS, Gordian and the City of Everett are parties to a Professional Services Agreement, dated November 
30, 2018 (the “Everett Contract”) under which Gordian is authorized to provide its JOC system and services to 
the City of Everett; 

WHEREAS, Owner is authorized to procure Gordian’s services under the Everett Contract, and the JOC 
Contracts, pursuant to the Interlocal Joint Purchasing Agreement between Owner and the City of Everett 
enacted in accordance with Chapter 39.34 of the Revised Washington Code; 

WHEREAS, Owner desires, through this Agreement, to procure certain services set forth in the Everett 
Contract in accordance with the pricing and other terms set forth therein which is incorporated by reference 
herein and included as Exhibit A, to facilitate Owner’s procurement of construction services through the JOC 
Contracts; and 

WHEREAS, the parties intend that this Agreement, including all additional terms stated in this Agreement 
which are not expressly stated in the Everett Contract, and the Everett Contract serve as the Agreement between 
the parties.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements herein contained, and for other good 
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as 
follows: 

Att-2

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 29 of 58



Page 2 

ARTICLE I 
TERM 

Owner hereby retains Gordian as Owner's JOC Services provider for the term commencing on the last date of 
the signatures below and thirty-six (36) months thereafter, unless terminated or extended as provided for herein. 
This Agreement may be extended for two additional periods of twelve (12) months each by the mutual written 
agreement of the parties. 

ARTICLE II 
SCOPE OF WORK 

Gordian will perform the duties and responsibilities set forth below: 

1. General Description: Owner desires to engage the services of Gordian to perform services related to
the support of a Job Order Contracting ("JOC") program (the “Services”) in accordance with the terms
and conditions set forth herein and as provided for in the Everett Contract.

2. Gordian Duties and Responsibilities: Gordian will perform the following duties and responsibilities to
complete the Services: 

2.1 JOC System: Gordian will provide a limited license (“JOC System License”) to enable Owner 
to procure construction services through the JOC Contracts supported by Gordian’s Job Order 
Contracting System and other related proprietary materials (collectively referred to as 
“Proprietary Information”).  The JOC System License terms are set forth in Article III.  

2.2 Job Order Development Services: Gordian will be responsible for providing Job Order 
Development services for each Job Order procured by Owner as described below: 

a. In the event multiple JOC contractors are available, Gordian will assist the Owner in
identifying the appropriate contractor for the project based on the type of work
involved and the location of the project.

c. Gordian will schedule a Joint Scope Meeting at the project site to help Owner and the
JOC contractor agree on the details of the work that the JOC contractor will perform.

d. Gordian will assist in preparing a Detailed Scope of Work that describes the work the
JOC contractor will perform. Gordian will also assist with resolving issues when
project plans and actual conditions vary.

e. After all parties are in agreement that the Detailed Scope of Work properly reflects
the work to be performed, Gordian will send the Detailed Scope of Work and a
Request for Proposal to the JOC contractor.

f. Gordian will review the Price Proposal to make sure the JOC contractor has selected
the appropriate tasks and quantities and will ask the JOC contractor to make any
required changes. Gordian will also obtain and review any Owner required
information submitted by the JOC contractor such as a construction schedule and a

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 30 of 58



  
 Page 3  

list of proposed subcontractors. Then Gordian will submit the Price Proposal and 
related documents to Owner.  

 
g. Once Owner approves of the Price Proposal and related documents, Owner is then 

responsible for the issuance of a purchase order to the selected JOC contractor. 
 
h. During construction, Owner’s project managers will follow its standard internal 

policies and procedures for construction management and site inspections, including 
coordinating any required code inspections. When unforeseen conditions arise or 
Owner desires to change the Detailed Scope of Work, a Supplemental Job Order is 
developed in the same manner as the original Job Order. 

 
ARTICLE III 

JOC SYSTEM LICENSE 
 
Gordian hereby grants to Owner, and Owner hereby accepts from Gordian for the term of this Agreement, a 
non-exclusive right, privilege and license to Gordian’s Job Order Contracting System and other related 
proprietary materials (collectively referred to as “Proprietary Information”) to be used for the sole purpose of 
procuring construction services through the JOC Contracts. The parties hereby agree that Proprietary 
Information shall include, but is not limited to, Construction Task Catalog® (also commonly referred to as a 
unit price book), construction cost data, training materials and other proprietary materials provided by Gordian. 
In the event this Agreement expires or terminates as provided herein, this JOC System License shall terminate 
and Owner shall return to Gordian all Proprietary Information in Owner’s possession. 
 
Owner acknowledges that the unauthorized disclosure of Proprietary Information will result in irreparable harm 
to Gordian for which monetary damages would be an inadequate remedy.  Therefore, Owner agrees that it will 
give Gordian notice prior to such disclosure to enable Gordian to obtain injunctive relief in the appropriate 
venue. Owner further acknowledges and agrees to respect the copyrights, registrations, trade secrets and other 
proprietary rights of Gordian in the Proprietary Information during and after the term of this Agreement and 
shall at all times maintain complete confidentiality with regard to the Proprietary Information provided to 
Owner, subject to federal and state laws related to public records disclosure. 
 
Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement as provided herein, Gordian shall provide to Owner all 
project data generated by Owner in a form accessible by a standard database program. 
 
Gordian agrees each contractor that holds a JOC Contract shall have the right to access and use the Proprietary 
Information for the purpose of providing construction services to Owner, provided the JOC contractor agrees 
to pay Gordian’s contractor license fee in effect when Owner utilizes the JOC Contracts. 
 
In the event of a conflict in terms and conditions between this JOC System License and any other terms and 
conditions of this Agreement or any purchase order or similar purchasing document issued by Owner, this JOC 
System License shall take precedence. 
 

 
ARTICLE IV 

COMPENSATION 
 
For all purchases made under the JOC Contracts by Owner, Gordian shall be compensated as follows: 
 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 31 of 58



  
 Page 4  

1. Owner Fees: Owner will pay the following fees, which shall be invoiced on a monthly basis in a 
format acceptable to Owner and shall a list of all Job Orders or Supplemental Job Orders: 

 
1.1 In consideration for the use of Gordian’s proprietary JOC system, Owner shall pay Gordian 

a JOC System License Fee of 1.95% of all work procured through the JOC Contracts.  
 

1.2  In consideration for the Job Order Development Services set forth in Section Article II, Section 
2.1 of this Agreement Owner shall, in addition to the JOC System License Fee, pay Gordian 
3.05% of all work procured through the JOC Contracts. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
NOTICES 

 
Unless otherwise provided for herein, all notices and other communications required by this Agreement shall 
be deemed to have been given when made in writing and either (a) delivered in person, (b) delivered to an 
agent, such as an overnight or similar delivery service, or (c) deposited in the United States mail, postage 
prepaid, certified or registered, addressed as follows: 
 
To the Owner: 
 
Bothell City Hall 
Attn: NPRSA 
18415 101st Ave. NE 
Bothell, WA 98011 
 
Carly Joerger, Levy Program Manager 
Phone: (425-471-8949) 
Email: carly.joerger@bothellwa.gov 
 
 
 
To Gordian 
 
The Gordian Group, Inc. 
Attn: Ammon T. Lesher 
30 Patewood Drive, Suite 350 
Greenville, SC 29615 
Phone: (800) 874-2291 
Email: a.lesher@thegordiangroup.com 
 

ARTICLE VI 
SEVERABILITY 

 
The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Agreement are severable, and if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Agreement shall be declared invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining clauses, phrases, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this Agreement.  
 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 32 of 58

mailto:a.lesher@thegordiangroup.com


  
 Page 5  

 
 

ARTICLE VII 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between Owner and Gordian and may be 
amended only by written instrument approved by both parties.  In the event of any conflict between this 
Agreement and Exhibit A, the terms of this Agreement shall control. 
 
  
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement. 
 
Owner       The Gordian Group, Inc. 
 
 
 
By:        By:   

Authorized Signature          Ammon T. Lesher 
 
              
Name and Title      Title 
 
              
Date  Date 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form 
 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
       Authorized Signature 
 
 
_ Paul Byrne, NPRSA Attorney________________ 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Date 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 33 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 34 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 35 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 36 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 37 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 38 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 39 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 40 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 41 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 42 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 43 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 44 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 45 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 46 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 47 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 48 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 49 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 50 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 51 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 52 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 53 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 54 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 55 of 58



NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 56 of 58



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 6B 

 
       

 
TO: 

 
Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Program Manager (Presenter) 
 

DATE: 
 

March 17, 2021 

SUBJECT: 
 

Consideration of Minute Order # MO-21-04, Facility Upgrade Request for a 
Dance/Exercise Studio 

 
 

   POLICY 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to consider if the NPRSA should approve a request from 
the Northshore Senior Center to convert a billiards room into a dance/exercise 
studio in the Northshore Senior Center.  
 
If approved, it has the potential to impact the property the NPRSA is responsible 
for by allowing the tenant to make facility improvements.  

  
HISTORY: DATE ACTION 

MARCH 29, 2016 NPRSA Board approves contract with Northshore Senior 
Center 

 
The current agreement in which the NPRSA named the Northshore Senior Center 
as the “Operator” of the buildings owned by the NPRSA, states the Operator may 
make additional improvements or alterations to the Centers, subject to prior 
written approval from the NPRSA Board. This stipulation only applies to 
improvements over $1,000. The Operator is responsible for the cost of all 
improvements or alterations.  

  
DISCUSSION: The Northshore Senior Center has submitted a request to the NPRSA Board to 

transition the billiards room into a dance/exercise studio in the Northshore 
Senior Center building. In 2019, only twelve individuals signed up for use of the 
billiards room whereas the Senior Center has received significantly more interest 
in fitness classes. This request is designed to better meet the needs and interests 
of the population the Senior Center serves, and would also allow for increased 
ongoing revenue generation by offering more classes.  
 
The upgrade is estimated to cost $12,000 and involves removing the carpet, 
installing laminate flooring, installing mirrors on the walls, as well as installing a 
barre. The billiards table would be moved to the first floor into a new game room. 

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 57 of 58



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 6B 

 
The Senior Center would like to begin this project as soon as possible and 
estimated the total upgrade to take no more than two months. Staff 
recommends the Board approve this upgrade request.  

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item has no direct fiscal impact to the NPRSA. 

  
ATTACHMENTS: This item has no attachments. 

  
RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 
Move to approve Minute Order # MO-21-04, approving a Facility Upgrade 
Request for a Dance/Exercise Studio. 

 
  

NPRSA Agenda Packet 03/17/2021, Page 58 of 58


	4B-AB-Vouchers (1).pdf
	4B-Att-2 Voucher Packet #2.pdf
	4B-Att-2 Voucher Packet #2
	Voucher Approval

	Johnson Controls Inv 44174712


	Final Agenda Packet 03172021.pdf
	Agenda 03172021
	2. Minute Order MO 21-03
	Att-1
	Voucher Sound Publishing 030521
	Voucher Approval


	4A Minutes 02172021
	Att-1

	4B Vouchers
	Att-1

	6A Agreements 21-03 and 21-04
	Att-1, A 21-03 City of Everett
	Att-2, A-21-04 Gordian Group for Professional Services





